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Letter to Shareholders

We are proud to present the financial results of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. 
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam County Bank, for 2014.

The Bank’s earnings showed significant improvement in 2014 with 
net earnings of $6.3 million compared with $5 million in 2013.  Loan 
growth during the year was significant in supporting the increase of 
earnings.  In addition, a lower cost of funds combined with the contin-
ued trend of improved credit quality resulting in lower net loan losses 
and close control of expenses also helped earnings.

Net loans increased $60 million or 17% in 2014, in contrast to an in-
crease of $25 million or 8% in 2013.  The increase marks an improving 
local economy effort to increase lending in our market while   
recognizing that credit quality is essential. We take pride in providing 
local decisions for our customer base and efficient turnaround.  

The Bank’s capital base grew to $80 million in 2014.  Our capital base 
continues to show considerable strength.

Management will continue to focus on net interest margin closely in 
the future and grow lending in a safe and profitable manner.  The Bank 
will continue to demonstrate responsible care in its operating expenses 
while serving its community.

During 2014, the economy has illustrated some strength in recovering 
from the effects of high unemployment, low consumer and business 
spending, and declines in real estate values.  While signs of recovery are 
evident, a consistent path is elusive.  The banking industry has shown 
significant improvement.  The bank failure rate in 2011 was 92; 51 in 
2012 and 24 in 2013.  In 2014, 18 banks failed.  The FDIC’s problem bank 
list dropped from a peak of 884 in the first quarter of 2011 to 291 at the 
fourth quarter of 2014. 
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The following is the financial results of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and 
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam County Bank, for 2018.

The Bank’s earnings declined slightly in 2018 with net earnings 
of $1.0 million compared with $1.1 million in 2017.  Loan loss 
provisions totaling $5.8 million were recognized due to elevated 
nonperforming loans.  Loan growth declined during the year as a 
result of intensified competition in a rising rate environment.  

Net loans declined $47 million in 2018 and $46 million in 2017.  
This decline suggests a slowing in the local economy and growing 
competition for loans.  We continue to provide local decisions for our 
customer base and efficient turnaround.

The Company’s capital base declined from $88.0 million in 2017 to 
$87.3 million in 2018.  This was caused by lower profits driven by 
increased provisions to the allowance for loan loss.  Nonetheless, the 
Company’s capital base continues to show considerable strength.

The Company has been impacted by an increased level of 
nonperforming loans.  This has been caused by several situations 
including a softening of the local real estate market and related 
bankruptcies of our borrowers.

Our state continues to deal with unemployment and the effects of 
the coal industry.  Rising energy prices continues to have a negative 
effect on the natural gas industry.  The state government has its 
challenges given the loss in revenues.  The local economy continues 
to tighten as residential development has slowed.

Putnam County Bank will continue to serve its customers with the 
products and services they have come to expect.  While the Bank 
may not provide every service imaginable, we feel the services we 
provide are cost-effective and secure.

We continue to be confident of the future of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. 
and Putnam County Bank.  While the future holds many challenges, 
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The following is the financial results of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and 
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam County Bank, for 2018.

The Bank’s earnings declined slightly in 2018 with net earnings of 
$1.0 million compared with $1.1 million in 2017.  Loan loss provisions 
totaling $5.8 million were recognized due to elevated nonperform-
ing loans.  

The Company has been impacted by an increased level of nonper-
forming loans.  This has been caused by several situations including 
a softening of the local real estate market and related bankruptcies 
of our borrowers. Management has worked diligently to address the 
increased level of nonperforming loans.    

Net loans were $343 million at the end of 2018, a decline of $47 
million.  This decline suggests a tightening in the local economy and 
growing competition for loans.  We continue to provide local deci-
sions for our customer base and efficient turnaround.

The Company’s capital base was $87.3 million in 2018.  The Compa-
ny’s capital base continues to show considerable strength.

During 2018, West Virginia had a net gain in jobs of over 4,300 and 
the unemployment rate improved from 5.40% to 5.10%.  Putnam 
County’s unemployment rate ended the year of 2018 slightly better 
than the State at 4.60%.  Although the coal industry accounted for a 
large number of job declines in recent years the industry has shown 
signs of improvement lately.  The demand for natural gas has contin-
ued to increase, which has benefited the State.         

Putnam County Bank will continue to serve its customers with the 
products and services they have come to expect.  While the Bank 
may not provide every service imaginable, we feel the services we 
provide are cost-effective and secure.

We continue to be confident of the future of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. 
and Putnam County Bank.  While the future holds many challenges, 
there continues to be a place for a local, community-minded institution



Our state continues to deal with unemployment and the effects upon 
the coal industry.  While natural gas has continued to be significant, 
losses due to coal have affected many communities and the entire 
state.  The local economy appears to be progressing as residential  
development appears to be increasing. 

In 2014, Debra Casey retired from the Bank with over 44 years of bank 
operations experience.  Debra had a significant role in the success of 
this Company and her contribution will not be forgotten.  We wish Deb-
ra the best in the future.

Putnam County Bank will continue to serve its customers with the 
products and services they have come to expect.  While the Bank may 
not provide every service imaginable, we feel the services we provide 
are cost-effective and secure.

 We continue to be confident of the future of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. 
and Putnam County Bank.  While the future holds many challenges, 
there continues to be a place for a local, community-minded institution 
which works hard every day to satisfy its customers.  We expect to meet 
these challenges with a helpful and knowledgeable staff of   
professionals that provide services that are timely and meet customer  
expectations.

If you should any questions or comments, please call us at   
(304) 562-9931.

J. R. Wilson         Robert S. Duckworth               John R. Wilson, Jr. 
Chairman of the Board          Chief Executive Officer                            President
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Selected Finanacial Summary
In Thousands of Dollars

2015 2014 2013 2012
YEAR-END BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Loans, Net 433,200 404,120 343,875             318,516          
Investment Securities 122,151 151,422 171,874             161,418          
Total Assets 638,294 623,666 624,146             603,201          
Deposits 547,616 538,435 544,589             525,406          
Shareholders' Equity 86,114 80,520 76,928               76,078            

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Loans, Net 421,063 370,148 330,883             315,837          
Investment Securities 120,114 157,116 169,696             144,493          
Total Assets 634,448 626,322 618,379             599,906          
Deposits 544,681 543,821 538,720             520,806          
Shareholders' Equity 84,328 80,221 77,196               76,060            

SELECTED RATIOS

Return On Average Assets 1.11% 1.00% 0.81% 0.42%
Return On Average Equity 8.36% 7.79% 6.50% 3.29%
Dividends Declared As a Percentage Of Net Income 22.98% 24.91% 29.89% 57.55%

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Interest Income 23,882 21,815 20,933               21,103            
Interest Expense 4,428 4,882 5,466                 6,485              
Net Interest Income 19,454 16,933 15,468               14,618            
Provision for Loan Losses 200 0 0 840                 
Noninterest Income 710 743 592                    462                 
Noninterest Expense 8,546 8,183 8,341                 9,974              
Net Income 7,048 6,305 5,026                 2,834              

PER SHARE DATA

Net Income 11.75 10.51 8.38                   4.72                
Cash Dividends 2.70 2.60 2.50                   2.40                
Book Value 143.52 134.20 128.21               126.80            

  

  

    

 
 

Four-Year Summary
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Selected Finanacial Summary
In Thousands of Dollars

2018 2017 2016 2015
YEAR-END BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Loans, Net 342,749 390,403 435,870 433,200
Investment Securities 166,992 156,353 118,143 122,151
Total Assets 588,200 621,158 651,874 638,294
Deposits 495,846 528,317 557,788 547,616
Shareholders' Equity 87,336 88,042 88,930 86,114

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Loans, Net 359,979 417,194 439,966 421,063
Investment Securities 160,434 126,659 125,063 120,114
Total Assets 609,701 654,984 649,941 634,448
Deposits 518,149 558,769 556,263 544,681
Shareholders' Equity 86,674 90,938 88,193 84,328

SELECTED RATIOS

Return On Average Assets 0.17% 0.17% 0.69% 1.11%
Return On Average Equity 1.16% 1.26% 5.09% 8.36%
Dividends Declared As a Percentage Of Net Income 172.92% 151.97% 37.42% 22.98%

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Interest Income 22,616 23,924 24,928 23,882
Interest Expense 4,675 4,711 4,848 4,428
Net Interest Income 17,941 19,213 20,080 19,454
Provision for Loan Losses 5,807 6,032 4,831 # 200
Noninterest Income 129 628 630 710
Noninterest Expense 10,965 9,978 8,971 8,546
Net Income 1,006 1,145 4,489 7,048

PER SHARE DATA

Net Income 1.68 1.91 7.48 11.75
Cash Dividends 2.90 2.90 2.80 2.70
Book Value 145.56 146.74 148.22 143.52
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Selected Finanacial Summary
In Thousands of Dollars
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Selected Finanacial Summary
In Thousands of Dollars
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Selected Finanacial Summary
In Thousands of Dollars

3128 3127 3126 3125

YEAR-END BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Loans, Net 390,403 435,870 433,200 404,120
Investment Securities 156,353 118,143 122,151 151,422
Total Assets 621,158 651,874 638,294 623,666
Deposits 528,317 557,788 547,616 538,435
Shareholders' Equity 88,042 88,930 86,114 80,520

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY

Loans, Net 417,194 439,966 421,063 370,148
Investment Securities 126,659 125,063 120,114 157,116
Total Assets 654,984 649,941 634,448 626,322
Deposits 558,769 556,263 544,681 543,821
Shareholders' Equity 90,938 88,193 84,328 80,221

SELECTED RATIOS

Return On Average Assets 0.17% 0.69% 1.11% 1.00%
Return On Average Equity 1.26% 5.09% 8.36% 7.79%
Dividends Declared As a Percentage Of Net Income 151.97% 37.42% 22.98% 24.91%

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Interest Income 23,924 24,928 23,882 21,815
Interest Expense 4,711 4,848 4,428 4,882
Net Interest Income 19,213 20,080 19,454 16,933
Provision for Loan Losses 6,032 4,831 200 # 0
Noninterest Income 628 630 710 743
Noninterest Expense 9,978 8,971 8,546 8,183
Net Income 1,145 4,489 7,048 6,305

PER SHARE DATA

Net Income 1.91 7.48 11.75 10.51
Cash Dividends 2.90 2.80 2.70 2.60
Book Value 146.74 148.22 143.52 134.20
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary
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ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 43,120               2,234              5.18% 54,160               2,843            5.25%
Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 43,120               2,234              5.18% 54,160               2,843            5.25%
Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 43,120               2,234              5.18% 54,160               2,843            5.25%
Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 43,120               2,234              5.18% 54,160               2,843            5.25%
Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 43,120               2,234              5.18% 54,160               2,843            5.25%
Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Interest Bearing   
Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 43,120               2,234              5.18% 54,160               2,843            5.25%
Real Estate 373,901             18,815            5.03% 383,805             19,708          5.13%
Consumer(2) 6,967                 521                 7.48% 7,671                 646               8.42%

Total Loans (1) 423,988             21,570            5.09% 445,636             23,197          5.21%
Securities (3)

Taxable 122,495             1,576              1.29% 118,479             1,273            1.07%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,695                 116                 4.32% 4,788                 243               5.08%
Mutual Funds 1,256                 29                   2.35% 1,000                 24                 2.40%

Total Securities 126,446             1,722              1.36% 124,267             1,540            1.24%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,460               86                   0.82% 9,509                 35                 0.37%
Federal Funds Sold 83,953               546                 0.65% 58,199               156               0.27%

Total Earning Assets 644,847             23,924            3.71% 637,611             24,928          3.91%

Cash and Due
from Banks 6,539                 6,707                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 549                    519                    

Other Assets 9,843                 10,774               
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,794)                (5,670)                

Total Assets(5) 654,984             649,941             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 124,555             249                 0.20% 117,004             234               0.20%
Savings 29,466               44                   0.15% 28,683               43                 0.15%
Time 338,844             4,418              1.30% 350,577             4,571            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Interest Bearing   
Liabilities 492,866             4,711              0.96% 496,264             4,848            0.98%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 65,903               59,999               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,860                 5,486                 
Equity 90,938               88,193               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 654,567             649,941             

Net Interest Margin 644,847             19,212            2.98% 637,611             20,080          3.15%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

31273128

/Volumes/Job Server II/Charleston/C190000-C200000/C197910 Putnam Co Bank/Customer Files/Analysis of 
Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities CPC.xls

Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

2018 2017
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

2018 2017

/Volumes/Job Server II/Charleston/C190000-C200000/C197910 Putnam Co Bank/Customer Files/Analysis of 
Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities CPC.xls

Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

2018 2017
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

2018 2017
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

2018 2017
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Analysis of Earning Assets and Interest Bearing Liabilities
In Thousands of Dollars

ASSETS Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate Avg. Balance Interest Yield/Rate
Loans

Commercial 26,354               1,682              6.38% 43,120               2,234            5.18%
Real Estate 332,974             16,264            4.88% 373,901             18,815          5.03%
Consumer(2) 6,795                 523                 7.70% 6,967                 521               7.48%

Total Loans (1) 366,123             18,469            5.04% 423,988             21,570          5.09%
Securities (3)

Taxable 156,585             2,923              1.87% 122,495             1,576            1.29%
Tax-Exempt (4) 2,815                 110                 3.91% 2,695                 116               4.32%
Mutual Funds 1,500                 33                   2.20% 1,256                 29                 2.35%

Total Securities 160,900             3,066              1.91% 126,446             1,722            1.36%
Interest Bearing Deposit in Banks 10,514               86                   0.82% 10,460               86                 0.82%
Federal Funds Sold 64,964               546                 0.84% 83,953               546               0.65%

Total Earning Assets 602,501             22,167            3.68% 644,847             23,924          3.71%

Cash and Due
from Banks 5,052                 6,539                 

Premises and
Equipment, Net 612                    549                    

Other Assets 7,680                 9,843                 
Allowance for

Loan Losses (6,144)                (6,794)                

Total Assets(5) 609,701             654,984             

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest Bearing Deposits
Super NOW and MMDA 123,398             247                 0.20% 124,555             249               0.20%
Savings 31,791               47                   0.15% 29,466               44                 0.15%
Time 298,287             4,381              1.47% 338,844             4,418            1.30%

Total Interest Bearing
Deposits 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Long-Term Borrowings 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total Interest Bearing   

Liabilities 453,476             4,675              1.03% 492,866             4,711            0.96%

Noninterest Bearing Deposits 64,672               65,903               
Accrued Expenses and Other

Liabilities 4,878                 4,860                 
Equity 86,674               90,938               

Total Liabilities and
Equity 609,701             654,567             

Net Interest Margin 602,501             17,491            2.90% 644,847             19,213          2.98%

(1) Includes loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Net of unearned interest.
(3) Represents amortized value.
(4) Tax-exempt income converted to a fully tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal tax of 21% and a state tax of 6.25%
(5) Net of SFAS 107 Market Value.

2018 20172018
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Rate Sensitivity Analysis As of December 31, 201
In Thousands of Dollars

Three Three to One to Three to Five to Over
Months or Twelve Three Five   Fifteen Fifteen 

REPRICING INTERVAL Less Months Years Years Years Years

ASSETS
Total Loans (1) 70,303             19,077             49,484          79,951          170,979        42,116          
Investment Securities (2) 20,045             34,183             40,992          20,832          
Federal Funds Sold 56,000             0 0 0

•••••• ••••• •,121
0

Total Selected Assets 146,348           53,260             90,476          100,783        170,979        47,237          

LIABILITIES
Interest Bearing Deposits (3) 152,446           121,015           59,877          15,669 0 0
Borrowed Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Selected Liabilities 152,446           121,015           59,877          15,669 0 0
Differences ••6,098•• (67,755) 30,599 85,114 170,979 47,237
Cumulative Differences ••6,098•• (73,853) (43,254) 41,860 212,839 260,076

(1) Does not include loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Does not include Federal Reserve Stock or securities on nonaccrual status.  Reported HTM securites at amortized cost and AFS securites at fair value.
(3) Does not include Super NOW, Money Market Deposit Accounts or traditional savings deposits.

0
0
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Rate Sensitivity Analysis As of December 31, 2017
In Thousands of Dollars

Three Three to One to Three to Five to Over
Months or Twelve Three Five   Fifteen Fifteen 

REPRICING INTERVAL Less Months Years Years Years Years

ASSETS
Total Loans (1) 37,391             19,811             45,958          49,614          177,949        35,907          
Investment Securities (2) 22,973             93,598             20,298          15,152          -                2,875            
Federal Funds Sold 47,600             0 0 0 0 0

Total Selected Assets 107,964           113,410           66,256          64,766          177,949        38,782          

LIABILITIES
Interest Bearing Deposits (3) 128,544           105,558           61,694          12,432 0 0
Borrowed Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Selected Liabilities 128,544           105,558           61,694          12,432 0 0

Differences (20,580) 7,852 4,562 52,334 177,949 38,782

Cumulative Differences (20,580) (12,728) (8,166) 44,168 222,117 260,899

(1) Does not include loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Does not include Federal Reserve Stock or securities on nonaccrual status.  Reported HTM securites at amortized cost and AFS securites at fair value.
(3) Does not include Super NOW, Money Market Deposit Accounts or traditional savings deposits.
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Rate Sensitivity Analysis As of December 31, 2017
In Thousands of Dollars

Three Three to One to Three to Five to Over
Months or Twelve Three Five   Fifteen Fifteen 

REPRICING INTERVAL Less Months Years Years Years Years

ASSETS
Total Loans (1) 37,391             19,811             45,958          49,614          177,949        35,907          
Investment Securities (2) 22,973             93,598             20,298          15,152          -                2,875            
Federal Funds Sold 47,600             0 0 0 0 0

Total Selected Assets 107,964           113,410           66,256          64,766          177,949        38,782          

LIABILITIES
Interest Bearing Deposits (3) 128,544           105,558           61,694          12,432 0 0
Borrowed Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Selected Liabilities 128,544           105,558           61,694          12,432 0 0

Differences (20,580) 7,852 4,562 52,334 177,949 38,782

Cumulative Differences (20,580) (12,728) (8,166) 44,168 222,117 260,899

(1) Does not include loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Does not include Federal Reserve Stock or securities on nonaccrual status.  Reported HTM securites at amortized cost and AFS securites at fair value.
(3) Does not include Super NOW, Money Market Deposit Accounts or traditional savings deposits.
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Putnam Bancshares, Inc. And Subsidiary

Rate Sensitivity Analysis As of December 31, 2018
In Thousands of Dollars

Three Three to One to Three to Five to Over
Months or Twelve Three Five   Fifteen Fifteen 

REPRICING INTERVAL Less Months Years Years Years Years

ASSETS
Total Loans (1) 28,971             16,105             38,509          55,422          165,901        26,736          
Investment Securities (2) 62,322             90,603             4,934            4,967            0 2,741            
Federal Funds Sold 56,318             0 0 0 0 0

Total Selected Assets 147,612           106,708           43,443          60,390          165,901        29,477          

LIABILITIES
Interest Bearing Deposits (3) 116,755           91,035             63,449          11,469 0 0
Borrowed Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Selected Liabilities 116,755           91,035             63,449          11,469 0 0

Differences 30,857 15,672 (20,006) 48,921 165,901 29,477

Cumulative Differences 30,857 46,529 26,522 75,443 241,344 270,821

(1) Does not include loans on nonaccrual status.
(2) Does not include Federal Reserve Stock or securities on nonaccrual status.  Reported HTM securites at amortized cost and AFS securites at fair value.
(3) Does not include Super NOW, Money Market Deposit Accounts or traditional savings deposits.



     2018 Annual Report     	 |	 F-4

MEMBERS 
 

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
WEST VIRGINIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

 
HESS, STEWART & CAMPBELL, PLLC 

 
 

JOHN G. HESS, CPA 
RICHARD M. STEWART, CPA 
ROBERT C. CAMPBELL, CPA 
TOMI J. WEBER, CPA 
CHARLES A. COOK, CPA 
JEFFREY M. MOLLOHAN, CPA 
ELLIOT R. WILSON, CPA, CFF, ABV, CVA 
TODD A. ROBINSON, CPA 
            __________   
 
DARRELL D. TUCKER, CPA 
CARLA F. LOKANT, CPA 
CHARLES “MATT” MORRIS, CPA 
MERRILL L. MAY, CPA 
JASON S. KELLEY, CPA 
ANDREW G. REED, CPA 
MATTHEW “MATT” SANDY, CPA 
TIFFANY D. GOODERHAM, CPA 
MAEGAN N. WILSON, CPA 
REBECCA J. WILLIAMS, CPA 
LEANNE T. IMPERI, EA 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Hurricane, West Virginia 
 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets  as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Hurricane, West Virginia 
 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets  as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Hurricane, West Virginia 
 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets  as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
 
 

 
Huntington, West Virginia 
March 18, 2019 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

ASSETS 2017 2016

Cash and due from banks 19,139,217$        17,099,705$
Federal funds sold 47,600,000          70,000,000
   Cash and cash equivalents      66,739,217          87,099,705

Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value 64,811,453          70,260,008
Investment securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost 91,541,459          47,883,320
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000                 39,000
Loans 396,214,375        443,121,190
Allowance for loan losses (5,811,612)           (7,251,008)

Net loans 390,402,763        435,870,182
Bank premises and equipment, net 580,239               567,201
Other real estate owned 1,738,269            3,913,555
Accrued interest receivable 1,429,607            1,737,824
Other assets 3,876,333            4,502,902

TOTAL ASSETS 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 67,069,056$        60,089,407$
Interest-bearing 461,248,124 497,698,940

Total deposits 528,317,180        557,788,347

Accrued interest payable 1,055,710            1,197,192
Other liabilities 3,743,248            3,957,682

TOTAL LIABILITIES 533,116,138 562,943,221

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $0.50 par value, 1,200,000 shares authorized,

600,000 shares issued and outstanding 300,000               300,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,000,000            1,000,000
Retained earnings 89,660,461          90,254,759
Accumulated other comprehensive income (2,918,259)           (2,624,283)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 88,042,202          88,930,476

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS 2018 2017

Cash and due from banks 15,822,270$        19,139,217$        
Federal funds sold 56,318,480          47,600,000          
   Cash and cash equivalents      72,140,750          66,739,217          

Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value 29,122,929          64,811,453
Investment securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost 137,869,021        91,541,459          
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000                 39,000                 
Loans 348,014,621        396,214,375
Allowance for loan losses (5,265,757)           (5,811,612)           

Net loans 342,748,864        390,402,763        
Bank premises and equipment, net 608,009               580,239               
Other real estate owned 1,009,663            1,738,269            
Accrued interest receivable 1,018,672            1,429,607
Other assets 3,643,034            3,876,333            

TOTAL ASSETS 588,199,942$      621,158,340$      

LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 62,852,494$        67,069,056$        
Interest-bearing 432,993,721        461,248,124        

Total deposits 495,846,215        528,317,180        

Accrued interest payable 1,245,816            1,055,710            
Other liabilities 3,772,055            3,743,248            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 500,864,086        533,116,138        

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $0.50 par value, 1,200,000 shares authorized,

600,000 shares issued and outstanding 300,000               300,000               
Additional paid-in capital 1,000,000            1,000,000            
Retained earnings 88,926,682          89,660,461          
Accumulated other comprehensive income (2,890,826)           (2,918,259)           

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 87,335,856          88,042,202          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 588,199,942$      621,158,340$      

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY



F-7	 |	 2018 Annual Report	

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
3

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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   Cash and cash equivalents      66,739,217          87,099,705
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Investment securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost 91,541,459          47,883,320
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000                 39,000
Loans 396,214,375        443,121,190
Allowance for loan losses (5,811,612)           (7,251,008)

Net loans 390,402,763        435,870,182
Bank premises and equipment, net 580,239               567,201
Other real estate owned 1,738,269            3,913,555
Accrued interest receivable 1,429,607            1,737,824
Other assets 3,876,333            4,502,902

TOTAL ASSETS 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 67,069,056$        60,089,407$
Interest-bearing 461,248,124 497,698,940

Total deposits 528,317,180        557,788,347

Accrued interest payable 1,055,710            1,197,192
Other liabilities 3,743,248            3,957,682

TOTAL LIABILITIES 533,116,138 562,943,221

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $0.50 par value, 1,200,000 shares authorized,

600,000 shares issued and outstanding 300,000               300,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,000,000            1,000,000
Retained earnings 89,660,461          90,254,759
Accumulated other comprehensive income (2,918,259)           (2,624,283)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 88,042,202          88,930,476

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
INTEREST INCOME

Interest and fees on loans 18,470,589$        21,570,419$        
Interest and dividends on investment securities:

Available-for-sale 985,736               1,136,125            
Held-to-maturity 2,080,248            583,397               
Federal Reserve Bank 151,335               88,385                 

Interest on federal funds sold 928,449               545,511               
Total interest income 22,616,357          23,923,837          

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits 4,675,422            4,711,200            

NET INTEREST INCOME 17,940,935          19,212,637          

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 5,807,258            6,031,602            

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
 PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 12,133,677          13,181,035          

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service fees 412,739               397,336               
Securities gains (losses) (338,145)              -                           
Rental income 51,348                 214,592               
Other income 3,465                   15,582                 

Total noninterest income 129,407               627,510               

NONINTEREST EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 5,999,653            5,957,449            
Equipment and occupancy expenses 471,475               437,727               
Data processing 1,104,291            1,067,302            
Insurance 244,706               437,718               
Professional fees 869,606               674,994               
Other real estate operational losses 928,333               232,408               
Other expenses 1,347,206            1,170,080            

Total noninterest expenses 10,965,270          9,977,678            

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,297,814            3,830,867            

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 291,593               2,685,165            

NET INCOME 1,006,221$          1,145,702$          
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Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000                 39,000
Loans 396,214,375        443,121,190
Allowance for loan losses (5,811,612)           (7,251,008)

Net loans 390,402,763        435,870,182
Bank premises and equipment, net 580,239               567,201
Other real estate owned 1,738,269            3,913,555
Accrued interest receivable 1,429,607            1,737,824
Other assets 3,876,333            4,502,902

TOTAL ASSETS 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 67,069,056$        60,089,407$
Interest-bearing 461,248,124 497,698,940

Total deposits 528,317,180        557,788,347

Accrued interest payable 1,055,710            1,197,192
Other liabilities 3,743,248            3,957,682

TOTAL LIABILITIES 533,116,138 562,943,221

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $0.50 par value, 1,200,000 shares authorized,

600,000 shares issued and outstanding 300,000               300,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,000,000            1,000,000
Retained earnings 89,660,461          90,254,759
Accumulated other comprehensive income (2,918,259)           (2,624,283)
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TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

Net income 1,006,221$          1,145,702$          

Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale securities, net of 

income taxes of $125,045 in 2018 and $73,338 in 2017 (392,525)              (230,214)              

Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses realized, net of
income taxes (benefit) of $(81,696) in 2018 and $0 in 2017 256,449               -                           

Change in underfunded pension liability, net of income taxes (benefit)
of $52,088 in 2018 and $(20,313) in 2017 163,509               (63,762)                

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 27,433                 (293,976)              

Comprehensive income 1,033,654$          851,726$             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



F-9	 |	 2018 Annual Report	

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
3

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

ASSETS 2017 2016

Cash and due from banks 19,139,217$        17,099,705$
Federal funds sold 47,600,000          70,000,000
   Cash and cash equivalents      66,739,217          87,099,705
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Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000                 39,000
Loans 396,214,375        443,121,190
Allowance for loan losses (5,811,612)           (7,251,008)

Net loans 390,402,763        435,870,182
Bank premises and equipment, net 580,239               567,201
Other real estate owned 1,738,269            3,913,555
Accrued interest receivable 1,429,607            1,737,824
Other assets 3,876,333            4,502,902

TOTAL ASSETS 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 67,069,056$        60,089,407$
Interest-bearing 461,248,124 497,698,940

Total deposits 528,317,180        557,788,347

Accrued interest payable 1,055,710            1,197,192
Other liabilities 3,743,248            3,957,682

TOTAL LIABILITIES 533,116,138 562,943,221

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $0.50 par value, 1,200,000 shares authorized,

600,000 shares issued and outstanding 300,000               300,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,000,000            1,000,000
Retained earnings 89,660,461          90,254,759
Accumulated other comprehensive income (2,918,259)           (2,624,283)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 88,042,202          88,930,476

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Accumulated
Additional Other

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Total
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

BALANCE, December 31, 2016 300,000$         1,000,000$      90,254,759$    (2,624,283)$       88,930,476$    

Net income -                      -                      1,145,702        -                          1,145,702        

Other comprehensive income - - - (293,976)            (293,976)         

Dividends, $2.90 per share -                      -                      (1,740,000)      -                          (1,740,000)      

BALANCE, December 31, 2017 300,000           1,000,000        89,660,461      (2,918,259)         88,042,202      

Net income -                      -                      1,006,221        -                          1,006,221        

Other comprehensive income - - - 27,433                27,433             

Dividends, $2.90 per share -                      -                      (1,740,000)      -                          (1,740,000)      

BALANCE, December 31, 2018 300,000$         1,000,000$      88,926,682$    (2,890,826)$       87,335,856$    
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DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
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Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000                 39,000
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Allowance for loan losses (5,811,612)           (7,251,008)

Net loans 390,402,763        435,870,182
Bank premises and equipment, net 580,239               567,201
Other real estate owned 1,738,269            3,913,555
Accrued interest receivable 1,429,607            1,737,824
Other assets 3,876,333            4,502,902

TOTAL ASSETS 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 67,069,056$        60,089,407$
Interest-bearing 461,248,124 497,698,940

Total deposits 528,317,180        557,788,347

Accrued interest payable 1,055,710            1,197,192
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   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 621,158,340$  651,873,697$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net income 1,006,221$          1,145,702$          

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
  provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 126,687               105,969               
Deferred income taxes (benefits) 60,467                 1,398,783            
Provision for loan losses 5,807,258            6,031,602            
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiary, net of distributions 16,600                 267                      
Net premium amortization on investment securities (2,186,387)           (182,946)              
Gain on sale of bank premises and equipment (13,711)                -                           
Gain on sale of securities 338,145               -                           
Loss on sale of OREO 686,961               100,239               
Change in carrying value in OREO 204,823               -                           
(Increase) decrease in:
   Interest receivable 410,935               308,217               
   Other assets 147,493               (644,340)              
Increase (decrease) in:
   Interest payable 190,106               (141,482)              
   Other liabilities 244,404               (298,509)              

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,040,002            7,823,502            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities 35,277,093          16,315,000          
Purchases of available-for-sale securities -                           (11,604,938)         
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities 212,000,000        103,000,000        
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (256,247,314)       (146,074,742)       
Proceeds from sale of equipment 58,000                 -                           
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (198,746)              (119,007)              
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 4,550,610            3,872,154            
Purchases of other real estate owned (58,249)                (138,720)              
Net (increase) decrease in loans 37,191,102          37,777,430          

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 32,572,496          3,027,177            
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase (decrease) in demand deposits (6,998,435)$         13,143,053$        
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits (25,472,530)         (42,614,220)         
Cash dividends paid (1,740,000)           (1,740,000)           

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (34,210,965)         (31,211,167)         

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,401,533            (20,360,488)         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 66,739,217          87,099,705          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 72,140,750$        66,739,217$        

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash paid for interest on deposits and borrowings 4,485,316$          4,852,682$          
Cash paid for income taxes -$                         2,432,806$          

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES

Loans transferred to foreclosed properties 4,655,539$          1,658,387$          
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NOTE 1.  NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of operations:  Putnam Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) is a West Virginia corporation headquartered in 
Hurricane, West Virginia. The Company owns all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Putnam County Bank. 
Putnam County Bank (the “Bank”) is a West Virginia state-chartered commercial bank that provides commercial, real 
estate and consumer loans and deposit services principally to individuals and businesses in Putnam County, West 
Virginia, and the surrounding areas. The Bank has three banking offices, all located in Hurricane, West Virginia. 
 
Basis of presentation:  The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices within the banking industry.  
 
Principles of consolidation:  The consolidated statements include the accounts of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and its 
wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam County Bank.  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated. 
 
Use of estimates:  The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.   
 
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance 
for losses on loans, the fair value of financial instruments and defined benefit plan obligations and expenses. In 
connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for 
significant collateral. 
 
The Bank’s loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, business assets and 
consumer assets.  Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to 
honor their contracts is dependent on local economic conditions. 
 
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts 
of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions.  In addition, regulatory agencies, as an 
integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans.  Such agencies may 
require the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their judgements about information available to them at the 
time of their examination.  Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may 
change materially in the near term.  However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be 
estimated. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents:  For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and due from banks 
includes cash on hand, cash items in process of clearing, federal funds sold, and amounts due from correspondent 
banks. 
 
Securities:  Debt securities are classified as “held-to-maturity”, “available-for-sale”, or “trading” according to 
management’s intent. The appropriate classification is determined at the time of purchase of each security and re-
evaluated at each reporting date.  
 

Securities held-to-maturity:  Debt securities for which the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold 
to maturity are reported at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts using 
methods approximating the interest method.  
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NOTE 1.  NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Securities available-for-sale: Securities not classified as “held-to-maturity” or as “trading” are classified 
as “available-for-sale”. Securities classified as “available for sale” are those securities the Bank intends to 
hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to maturity. “Available-for-sale” securities are 
reported at fair value, net of unrealized gains or losses, which are adjusted for applicable income taxes 
and reported as other comprehensive income.  

 
Trading securities: There are no securities classified as “trading” in the accompanying financial 
statements.  

 
Any security that has experienced a decline in value, which management deems other-than-temporary, is reduced to its 
estimated fair value. The related write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses.  In estimating other-than-
temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has 
been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of 
the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in 
fair value. Realized gains and losses on sales of securities are recognized using the specific-identification method. 
Amortization of premiums and accretion discounts are computed using the effective interest rate method.  
 
Investment in limited liability company:  The Company entered into an agreement with other individuals to form 
Putnam County Title Insurance Agency, LLC. The Company has a controlling interest in the LLC, owning 51%. The 
equity method was used in accounting for the LLC. See Note 15 for additional information. 
 
Loans:  The Bank’s primary market is Putnam County, West Virginia and surrounding areas. The Bank grants 
commercial, real estate and consumer loans to its customers, most of whom are located within the Bank’s primary 
market.  Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to honor their 
contracts is dependent upon the Bank’s primary market economic conditions, particularly in the real estate sector. The 
concentration of credit in the regional economy is taken into consideration by management in determining the 
allowance for loan losses. 
 
Loans are either secured or unsecured based on the type of loan and the financial condition of the borrower. The loans 
are generally expected to be repaid from cash flow or proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrower; 
however, the Bank is exposed to risk of loss on any or all loans due to the borrower’s difficulties, which can arise 
from any number of factors including problems within the respective industry or economic conditions within the 
Bank’s primary market. 
 
Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by unearned discount and an allowance for loan losses. 
Interest is accrued daily on the unpaid principal balance. 
 
Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status when principal or interest is greater than 90 days past due based upon 
the loan’s contractual terms, unless such loans are well secured and in the process of collection. Loans that are on a 
current payment status or past due less than 90 days may also be classified as nonaccrual if repayment in full of 
principal and/or interest is in doubt. Interest on nonaccrual loans is recognized primarily using the cost-recovery 
method.  
 
Loans may be returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are reasonably 
assured of repayment within an acceptable period of time, and there is a sustained period of repayment performance 
by the borrower.  
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NOTE 1.  NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Allowance for loan losses:  The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred 
through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to 
the allowance. 
 
The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s 
periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan 
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying 
collateral, and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are 
susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. 
 
The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that 
are classified as doubtful, substandard, or special mention. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an 
allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired 
loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers nonclassified loans and is based on 
historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover 
uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance 
reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating 
specific and general losses in the portfolio.  
 
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be 
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the 
loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral 
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience 
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines 
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the 
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the 
borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 
Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of 
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the 
fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.  
 
Off-balance sheet financial instruments:  In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into off-balance sheet 
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of 
credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they are funded or 
related fees are incurred or received. 
 
Bank premises and equipment:  Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed primarily on the straight-line method for Bank premises and equipment over the estimated 
useful lives of the respective assets as follows:  
 
  Buildings and improvements   10-40 years 
  Equipment, fixtures and vehicles    3-10 years 
 
Repairs, maintenance and minor improvements are charged to occupancy and equipment expense as incurred. Major 
improvements and additions to premises and equipment are capitalized. Gains or losses on disposition, if any, are 
included in current operations.  
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NOTE 1.  NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  
 
Other real estate owned:  Other real estate owned consists of real estate held for sale which was acquired through 
foreclosure on loans secured by such real estate. At the time of acquisition, these properties are recorded at the lower 
of cost or appraised market value with any write down being charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to 
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying 
amount or fair value less estimated selling costs. Revenues and expenses incurred in connection with operating these 
properties and any direct write downs are included in net cost of operations of other real estate in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income.  
 
Bank-owned life insurance:  The Bank purchased a life insurance policy on a key executive. Bank-owned life 
insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date, which is 
the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement.  
 
Advertising costs:  Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in other operating expenses. Advertising 
expense was $140,063 and $115,307 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
 
Compensated absences:  Compensated absences have not been accrued since they cannot be reasonably estimated 
due to restrictions on usage.  The Bank recognizes the cost of compensated absences when actually paid. 
 
Employee benefit plans:  The Bank accounts for its defined benefit plan in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 715, Employer’s Accounting for 
Pensions. See Note 9 for additional information.  
 
The Bank adopted a 401(k) plan effective January 1, 2013, and its defined benefit pension plan was frozen as of 
October 31, 2012. The Bank will still be accountable for past pension obligations and will continue to fund the 
pension plan as needed.  
 
Income taxes:  Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary file a consolidated federal income tax return. Income taxes 
are provided for the tax effects of the transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently 
due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the bases of the allowances for loan losses, unfunded 
pension liability and unrealized gains/losses on available-for-sale securities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities 
are expected to be settled or realized. Valuation allowances are established when deemed necessary to reduce deferred 
tax assets to the amount expected to be realized within a short term. 
 
Other comprehensive income:  Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, and gains 
and losses be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and 
losses on available-for-sale securities and amortization of deferred gains and losses associated with the Company’s 
pension plan, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with 
net income, are components of other comprehensive income. The components of other comprehensive income and 
related tax effects are presented within the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.  
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NOTE 1.  NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Earnings per share:  Earnings per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the period.  
 

2018 2017
Net income 1,006,221$          1,145,702$          

Earnings per common share 1.68$                   1.91$                   

Divdends paid per common share 2.90$                   2.90$                    
 
Reclassifications:  Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year’s financial statements to place them on a 
basis comparable with the current year. 
 
Date of management’s review of subsequent events:  Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 
18, 2019, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
Recent accounting pronouncements:  The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that could 
impact the accounting, reporting and/or disclosure of financial information by the Company.  
 
In July 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2018-11, Leases – Targeted Improvements. The 
amendments in this Update provide entities with an additional (and optional) transition method to adopt the new leases 
standard. Under this new transition method, an entity initially applies the new leases standard at the adoption date and 
recognizes a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption 
consistent with preparers’ requests. Consequently, an entity’s reporting for the comparative periods presented in the 
financial statements in which it adopts the new leases standard will continue to be in accordance with current GAAP 
(Topic 840, Leases). An entity that elects this additional (and optional) transition method must provide the required 
Topic 840 disclosures for all periods that continue to be in accordance with Topic 840. The amendments do not 
change the existing disclosure requirements in Topic 840 (for example, they do not create interim disclosure 
requirements that entities previously were not required to provide). 
 
Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
 
NOTE 2.  RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 
 
Certain reserves are required to be maintained at the Federal Reserve Bank. The requirement as of December 31, 2018 
and 2017 was $8,015,000 and $8,276,000, respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank had accounts at 
correspondent banks, excluding the Federal Reserve Bank, which exceeded the FDIC insurable limit of $250,000 by 
$1,492,797 and $3,010,008, respectively.  
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NOTE 3.  SECURITIES  
 
The amortized gains, unrealized losses and estimated fair values of securities at December 31, 2018 and 2017, are as 
follows: 

 

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized 

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government treasuries 4,999,269$        -$                         (13,329)$              4,985,940$        
U.S. Government agencies 20,116,204        -                           (144,304)              19,971,900        
Municipal bonds 2,815,327          15,597                 (90,087)                2,740,837          
Mutual funds 1,500,000          -                           (75,748)                1,424,252          
Total available-for-sale 29,430,800$      15,597$               (323,468)$            29,122,929$      

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government treasuries 137,869,021$    9,868$                 (53,414)$              137,825,475$    

December 31, 2018

 

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized 

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value

Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government treasuries 10,095,206$      -$                         (54,386)$              10,040,820$      
U.S. Government agencies 50,529,588        5,784                   (95,781)                50,439,591        
Municipal bonds 2,815,105          59,913                 -                           2,875,018          
Mutual funds 1,500,000          -                           (43,976)                1,456,024          
Total available-for-sale 64,939,899$      65,697$               (194,143)$            64,811,453$      

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government treasuries 91,541,459$      589$                    (64,259)$              91,477,789$      

December 31, 2017

 
 
The following table shows the proceeds from maturities, sales, and calls of available for sale securities and the gross 
realized gains and losses on those sales. Gains and losses are computed using the specific-identification method.  
 

2018 2017

Proceeds from maturities, sales and calls 14,985,430$        1,308,275$          

Gross realized gains -$                         -$                         

Gross realized losses 338,145$             -$                          
 
The scheduled maturities of securities at December 31, 2018, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected 
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations 
with or without call or prepayment penalties.  



     2018 Annual Report     	 |	 F-18

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                       

 

15 

NOTE 3.  SECURITIES (continued) 
 

Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due within one year 15,104,150$    15,056,225$    137,869,021$  137,825,475$  
Due after one year through five years 10,011,323      9,901,615        -                       -                       
Due after five years through ten years -                       -                       -                       -                       
Due after ten years 4,315,327        4,165,089        -                       -                       

Totals 29,430,800$    29,122,929$    137,869,021$  137,825,475$  

Available-for-sale securities Held-to-maturity securities

 
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying value of securities pledged to secure public funds totaled $76,650,000 
and $76,650,000, respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the estimated fair values totaled $76,039,569 and 
$76,999,077, respectively, and were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted 
by law. 
 
Impairment is evaluated considering numerous factors, and their relative significance varies from case to case. Factors 
considered include the length of time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost; the financial 
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer; and the intent and ability to retain the security in order to allow for an 
anticipated recovery in market value. If, based on the analysis, it is determined that the impairment is other-than-
temporary, the security is written down to fair value, and a loss is recognized through earnings. There were no other-
than-temporary impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.  
 
The Bank had 9 available-for-sale securities and 28 held-to-maturity securities with an unrealized loss position at 
December 31, 2018. These securities are predominately rated investment grade securities and the unrealized losses are 
due to overall market interest rate fluctuations and not due to any underlying credit concerns of the issuers. The Bank 
has the intent and ability to hold such investments until maturity or market price recovery. Accordingly, the Bank has 
concluded that none of the securities in its investment portfolio are other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 
2018.  
 
The following table summarizes the fair value and gross unrealized losses of securities, aggregated by major 
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position:  
 

Estimated 
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government treasuries -$                   -$                   4,985,940$    (13,329)$        4,985,940$    (13,329)$        
U.S. Government agencies 4,934,215      (30,329)          15,037,685    (113,975)        19,971,900    (144,304)        
Municipal bonds 905,240         (90,087)          -                     -                     905,240         (90,087)          
Mutual funds -                     -                     1,424,252      (75,748)          1,424,252      (75,748)          
Total available-for-sale 5,839,455$    (120,416)$      21,447,877$  (203,052)$      27,287,332$  (323,468)$      

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government treasuries 72,835,309$  (53,414)$        -$                   -$                   72,835,309$  (53,414)$        

December 31, 2018

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
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NOTE 3.  SECURITIES (continued) 
 

Estimated 
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government treasuries 4,984,570$    (12,502)$        5,056,250$    (41,884)$        10,040,820$  (54,386)$        
U.S. Government agencies 35,397,350    (95,782)          -                     -                     35,397,350    (95,782)          
Municipal bonds -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Mutual funds 494,836         (5,164)            961,189         (38,811)          1,456,025      (43,975)          
Total available-for-sale 40,876,756$  (113,448)$      6,017,439$    (80,695)$        46,894,195$  (194,143)$      

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government treasuries 80,526,151$  (64,259)$        -$                   -$                   80,526,151$  (64,259)$        

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

December 31, 2017

 
 
Restricted investments, at cost 
 
Federal Reserve Bank stock, which represents a required investment in the common stock of the Federal Reserve Bank 
(FRB), is carried at cost as a restricted long-term investment at December 31, 2018 and 2017.  The balance for FRB 
stock at December 31, 2018 and 2017 totaled $39,000. 
 
NOTE 4.  LOANS 
 
The following table summarizes the components of the Bank’s loan portfolio as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:  
 

2018 2017
Loans

Commercial 95,745,975$        118,436,442$      
Real estate 212,337,449        221,689,185        
Construction 24,299,855          40,346,721          
Other 15,631,342          15,742,027          
Gross loans 348,014,621        396,214,375        
Less unearned interest on installment loans -                           -                           

Total loans 348,014,621        396,214,375        
Less allowance for loan losses (5,265,757)           (5,811,612)           
Loans, net 342,748,864$      390,402,763$      

 
A summary of risk characteristics by loan portfolio classification follows:  
 

Commercial: This portfolio consists of nonresidential improved real estate, which includes shopping 
centers, office buildings, etc. New loans in this portfolio are typically balloon loans with initial fixed rate 
terms of five years and generally have an original loan-to-value (“LTV”) of 85% or less. These properties 
are generally located in the Bank’s normal lending area.  
 
Real Estate: This portfolio primarily consists of owner-occupied, full documentation loans secured by 
properties in the Bank’s normal lending area. New loans in this portfolio are typically balloon mortgages 
with an initial fixed rate term of 10 years and generally have an original LTV of 90% or less.  
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NOTE 4.  LOANS (continued) 
 
Construction: This portfolio consists of residential and commercial construction loans. Loans in this 
portfolio are typically set for an interest only period of 12 months, during construction phase. Rates are 
typically prime plus 2% and usually have a set floor of 5%.  
 
Other: This portfolio consists of loans that are unsecured, secured by automobiles, or secured by deposit 
accounts. This portfolio is generally granted to local customers only.  

 
Management monitors the credit quality of its loans on an ongoing basis. Any loan that is 30 days past payment is 
considered past due and is included in the past due table below. Past due loans are examined to identify loans for non-
accrual status, which are normally loans that are 90 days past due, unless special circumstances exist. Loans may be 
returned to accrual status when repayment is reasonably assured and there has been demonstrated performance under 
the terms of the loan.  
 
The following tables present the contractual aging of the recorded investment in past due loans as of December 31, 
2018 and 2017:  
 

Dollars in thousands 30-59 Days 60-89 Days > 90 Days Total Current Total loans

Commercial 25$                  -$                     1,965$             1,990$             93,756$           95,746$           -$                     
Real estate 992                  112                  2,370               3,474               208,863           212,337           -                       
Construction -                       -                       1,209               1,209               23,091             24,300             -                       
Other 6                      7                      -                       13                    15,618             15,631             -                       

Totals 1,023$             119$                5,544$             6,686$             341,328$         348,014$         -$                     

Past due

Recorded 
investment >90 

days and 
accruing

December 31, 2018

 
 

Dollars in thousands 30-59 Days 60-89 Days > 90 Days Total Current Total loans

Commercial 2,473$             1,292$             7,267$             11,032$           107,404$         118,436$         -$                     
Real estate 2,183               2,726               4,759               9,668               212,021           221,689           49                    
Construction 2,901               683                  5,795               9,379               30,968             40,347             -                       
Other 222                  3                      131                  356                  15,386             15,742             -                       

Totals 7,779$             4,704$             17,952$           30,435$           365,779$         396,214$         49$                  

Past due

Recorded 
investment >90 

days and 
accruing

December 31, 2017
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NOTE 4.  LOANS (continued) 
 
The following table presents the non-accrual loans included in the net balance of loans at December 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively.  
 

2018 2017

Commercial 6,760,196$          11,479,048$        
Real estate 7,512,924            9,227,634            
Construction 1,700,950            7,470,477            
Other 26,442                 184,748               
   Totals 16,000,512$        28,361,907$         

 
If interest on non-accrual loans had been accrued, such income would have approximated $1,889,541 and $1,786,564 
for the years December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  
 
Loans are categorized into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their 
debt such as current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, 
and current economic trends, among other factors. The Bank assigns credit quality indicators of pass, special mention, 
substandard, and doubtful to its loans. The following definitions are used for risk grades:  
 

Pass: Loans in this category are characterized by borrowers with an average to strong financial condition, 
sufficient cash flows to service the debt, and repayment history is satisfactory.  

 
Special Mention: Special mention loans have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s attention. 
If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects.  
 
Substandard: A substandard loan is inadequately protected by the sound worth and paying capacity of the 
borrower or the collateral pledged. Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard 
loans, does not have to exist in individual assets. They require more intensive supervision by 
management.  
 
Doubtful: Doubtful loans have all the weaknesses inherent in substandard loans, with the added 
characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing 
facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. These are poor quality loans in which 
neither the collateral, if any, nor the financial condition of the borrower ensure collectability in full. 
Loans classified as doubtful are considered impaired. 
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NOTE 4.  LOANS (continued) 
 
The following tables present loans based upon the internal risk ratings by class:  
 

Commercial Real estate Construction Other Total

Pass 71,384,498$    197,709,414$  21,241,266$    12,096,978$    302,432,156$  
Special mention 8,853,570        1,392,107        197,096           3,215,149        13,657,922      
Substandard 15,507,907      13,235,928      2,861,493        319,215           31,924,543      
Doubtful -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Totals 95,745,975$    212,337,449$  24,299,855$    15,631,342$    348,014,621$  

December 31, 2018

 

Commercial Real estate Construction Other Total

Pass 61,883,920$    194,905,469$  27,903,808$    11,379,619$    296,072,816$  
Special mention 31,211,793      8,295,041        2,268,579        3,683,268        45,458,681      
Substandard 25,340,729      18,488,675      10,174,334      679,140           54,682,878      
Doubtful -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Totals 118,436,442$  221,689,185$  40,346,721$    15,742,027$    396,214,375$  

December 31, 2017

 
In the normal course of business, the Bank makes loans to directors, executive officers, stockholders and their 
affiliates on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable transactions with other customers and did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than the 
normal credit risk.  
 
The following presents the activity with respect to loans to related parties for 2018 and 2017:  
 

2018 2017
Balances - January 1, 11,812,749$        12,174,003$        
New loans 1,353,213            456,848               
Repayments (1,305,239)           (818,102)              
   Balances - December 31, 11,860,723$        11,812,749$         
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NOTE 4.  LOANS (continued) 
 
The following is a summary of impaired loans by class at December 31, 2018 and 2017:  
 

Unpaid 
principal 
balance

Related 
allowance

Interest
income

recognized
With a related allowance

Commercial 8,489,340$        391,755$           171,290$           
Real estate 8,662,124          1,343,538          87,880               
Construction 1,446,218          131,467             -                         
Other 5,865                 643                    -                         
  Totals 18,603,547$      1,867,403$        259,170$           

With no related allowance
Commercial 2,991,869$        -$                       113,327$           
Real estate 705,716             -                         1,198                 
Construction 326,707             -                         17,684               
Other 1,102                 -                         -                         
  Totals 4,025,394$        -$                       132,209$           

Total
Commercial 11,481,209$      391,755$           284,617$           
Real estate 9,367,840          1,343,538          89,078               
Construction 1,772,925          131,467             17,684               
Other 6,967                 643                    -                         
  Totals 22,628,941$      1,867,403$        391,379$           

December 31, 2018
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NOTE 4.  LOANS (continued) 
 

Unpaid 
principal 
balance

Related 
allowance

Interest
income

recognized
With a related allowance

Commercial 4,792,174$        1,843,801$        370,297$           
Real estate 5,632,570          673,865             236,500             
Construction 10,054               10,054               887                    
Other -                         -                         -                         
  Totals 10,434,798$      2,527,720$        607,684$           

With no related allowance
Commercial 12,481,969$      -$                       728,665$           
Real estate 23,902,457        -                         1,013,970          
Construction 725,985             -                         54,542               
Other 28,303               -                         1,122                 
  Totals 37,138,714$      -$                       1,798,299$        

Total
Commercial 17,274,143$      1,843,801$        1,098,962$        
Real estate 29,535,027        673,865             1,250,470          
Construction 736,039             10,054               55,429               
Other 28,303               -                         1,122                 
  Totals 47,573,512$      2,527,720$        2,405,983$        

December 31, 2017

 
 
NOTE 5.  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 
 
The allowance is comprised of three distinct reserve components: (1) specific reserves related to loans individually 
evaluated, (2) quantitative reserves related to loans collectively evaluated, and (3) qualitative reserves related to loans 
collectively evaluated. A summary of the methodology the Bank employs on a quarterly basis with respect to each of 
these components in order to evaluate the overall adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is as follows:  
 
Specific Reserve for Loans Individually Evaluated  
 
To identify loans considered for impairment evaluation, management will begin with a review of the Loan Portfolio 
Watch List. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be 
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. “All amounts due, 
according to the contractual terms”, means that both the contractual interest payments and the contractual principal 
payments of a loan will be collected as scheduled in the loan agreement. However, an insignificant delay or 
insignificant shortfall in amount of payments on the loan does not mean the loan is impaired.  
 
Once determined to be impaired, impairment will be measured by the present value of expected cash flow at the loan’s 
effective interest rate, less the fair value of the loans’ collateral and costs to sell. Loans determined to be impaired will 
be identified and listed individually with the impairment measurement amount (even if the amount is zero). These 
loans will be deducted from the appropriate loan pool when calculating the estimated loss under ASC 450-10.  
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NOTE 5.  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 
 
Quantitative Reserve for Loans Collectively Evaluated  
 
Under ASC 450-10, loss estimates are calculated for groups of loans with similar risk characteristics. The Bank 
identifies the similar loan groups as Commercial, Real Estate, Construction, and Other. Charge-off amounts are 
compared to average loans outstanding to calculate a 2-Year Historic Average Loan Loss Percentage. This percentage 
is applied to the current loans outstanding for each loan pool, less the impaired loans for each loan pool. The result is 
the required general reserves amount.  
 
Qualitative Reserve for Loans Collectively Evaluated  
 
The Bank also considers the necessity to adjust the average historical net loan charge-off rates relative to each of the 
above loan pools for potential risk factors that could result in actual losses deviating from prior loss experience. Such 
qualitative risk factors considered are: (1) levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans, (2) effects of any 
changes in the quality of the loan review system and findings, (3) trends in volume and term of loans, (4) effects of 
any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards, and other changes in lending policies, procedures, and 
practice, (5) experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff, (6) national and local 
economic trends and conditions, (7) industry conditions such as competition and legal and regulatory  requirements, 
(8) effects of changes in credit concentrations, and (9) effects of changes in the value of underlying collateral.  
 
Activity in the allowance for loan losses by loan class for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:  
 

2018 Commercial Real estate Construction Other Total

Allowance for loan loss
Beginning balance 3,733,625$       478,785$          1,580,529$       18,673$            5,811,612$       

Charge-offs (5,327,285)       (203,851)          (2,681,021)       (178,459)          (8,390,616)       
Recoveries 1,423,457         54,543              327,505            231,998            2,037,503         
Provision 2,799,185         546,356            2,513,712         (51,995)            5,807,258         
Ending balance 2,628,982$       875,833$          1,740,725$       20,217$            5,265,757$       

Allowance related to:
Loans individually evaluated

for impairment 391,755$          1,343,538$       131,467$          643$                 1,867,403$       
Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 2,237,227         (467,705)          1,609,258         19,574              3,398,354         
Totals 2,628,982$       875,833$          1,740,725$       20,217$            5,265,757$       

Loans
Loans individually evaluated

for impairment 11,481,209$     9,367,840$       1,772,925$       6,967$              22,628,941$     
Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 84,264,766       202,969,609     22,526,930       15,624,375       325,385,680     
Totals 95,745,975$     212,337,449$   24,299,855$     15,631,342$     348,014,621$    
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NOTE 5.  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 
 

2017 Commercial Real estate Construction Other Total

Allowance for loan loss
Beginning balance 5,420,770$       632,430$          1,143,250$       54,558$            7,251,008$       

Charge-offs (3,564,797)       (631,315)          (3,135,115)       (505,770)          (7,836,997)       
Recoveries 285,210            36,191              -                        44,597              365,998            
Provision 1,592,442         441,479            3,572,394         425,288            6,031,603         
Ending balance 3,733,625$       478,785$          1,580,529$       18,673$            5,811,612$       

Allowance related to:
Loans individually evaluated

for impairment 1,843,801$       673,865$          10,054$            -$                      2,527,720$       
Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 1,889,824         (195,080)          1,570,475         18,673              3,283,892         
Totals 3,733,625$       478,785$          1,580,529$       18,673$            5,811,612$       

Loans
Loans individually evaluated

for impairment 17,274,143$     29,535,027$     736,039$          28,303$            47,573,512$     
Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 101,162,299     192,154,158     39,610,682       15,713,724       348,640,863     
Totals 118,436,442$   221,689,185$   40,346,721$     15,742,027$     396,214,375$   

 
Both commercial and consumer loans are deemed impaired upon being contractually modified in a troubled debt 
restructuring (“TDR”). TDRs typically result from loss mitigation activities and occur when the Bank grants a 
concession to a borrower who is experiencing financial difficulty in order to minimize the loss. The modifications to 
the Company’s TDRs for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were concessions on the interest rate charged 
and paying real estate taxes. The effect of the modifications to the Company was a reduction in interest income. Once 
restructured in a TDR, a loan is generally considered impaired until its maturity, regardless of whether the borrower 
performs under the modified terms. Although such a loan may be returned to accrual status if all principal and interest 
is paid to date, the loan would continue to be evaluated for an asset-specific allowance for loan losses.  
 
The following tables present TDRs, modified by class at December 31, 2018 and 2017: 
 

2018
Number of 
contracts

Unpaid principal 
balance

Commercial 9                    6,510,203$          
Real estate 13                  2,125,062            
Construction 1                    67,398                 
Other -                     -                           

Totals 23                  8,702,663$           
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NOTE 5.  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 
 

2017
Number of 
contracts

Unpaid principal 
balance

Commercial 7                    6,174,394$          
Real estate 13                  2,315,780            
Construction -                     -                           
Other -                     -                           

Totals 20                  8,490,174$           
  
Default occurs when payments are not received in accordance with terms specified in the loan document, which may 
result in the loan being fully or partially charged-off.  For the year ended December 31, 2018, there were two 
restructured commercial loans that subsequently defaulted resulting in principal charge-offs of $90,556. For the year 
ended December 31, 2017, there were three restructured mortgage loans that subsequently defaulted resulting in 
principal charge-offs of $29,300, and two restructured commercial loans that subsequently defaulted resulting in 
principal charge-offs of $56,000. 
 
NOTE 6.  BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Major classifications of bank premises and equipment and the total accumulated depreciation are as follows:  
 

2018 2017
Buildings and improvements 1,869,786$          1,856,589$          
Furniture and fixtures 1,748,937 1,604,791
Vehicles 228,865               242,307               

3,847,588            3,703,687            
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,440,039)           (3,323,908)           

407,549               379,779               
Land 200,460               200,460               

Bank premises and equipment, net 608,009$             580,239$              
 
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, totaled $126,687 and $105,969, respectively, 
and is included in equipment and occupancy expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.  
 
The Bank has entered into a noncancelable lease agreement with a related party, consummated at arm’s length, for its 
Teays Valley branch. Rent expense for the operating lease approximated $73,437 and $73,437 for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The minimum annual rental commitment under this lease, exclusive of 
taxes and other charges, payable by the lessee at December 31, 2018, is as follows:  
 

Year Amount
2019 73,437$               
2020 73,437
2021 73,437
2022 67,317
2023 and thereafter -                           
   Total 287,628$              
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NOTE 7.  DEPOSITS 
 
The following is a summary of major categories of deposits at December 31, 2018 and 2017:  
 

2018 2017
Non-interest bearing 62,852,494$        67,069,056$        
Interest bearing:

Time deposits under $250,000 199,160,986 221,248,740
Time deposits greater than or equal to $250,000 83,541,162          86,925,938          

Total time deposits 282,702,148        308,174,678        
Money market 117,855,306 122,945,369
Savings 32,436,267          30,128,077          

Total interest bearing deposits 432,993,721        461,248,124        
Total deposits 495,846,215$      528,317,180$      

 
Scheduled maturities of time and certificates of deposit at December 31, 2018, are as follows:  
 

Year Amount
2019 157,094,693$      
2020 52,271,538          
2021 11,177,801          
2022 and thereafter 62,158,116          
   Total 282,702,148$       

 
The Bank has, and expects to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors 
and officers of the Bank and their associates. Such related party deposits were accepted on substantially the same 
terms including interest rates and maturities as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated 
parties. Aggregate deposit transactions with related parties approximated $50,243,274 and $52,352,957 at December 
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  
 
NOTE 8.  INCOME TAXES 
 
The components of applicable income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, are 
summarized as follows:  

2018 2017
Current expense:

Federal 205,654$             1,184,736$          
State 25,472                 101,646               

Total current 231,126               1,286,382            

Deferred expense:
Federal 50,420                 1,399,640            
State 10,047                 (857)                     

Total deferred 60,467                 1,398,783            
Income tax expense 291,593$             2,685,165$           
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NOTE 8.  INCOME TAXES (continued) 
 
Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of 
the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2018 and 2017, are as follows:  
 

2018 2017
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses 1,272,207$          1,404,085$          
Defined benefit plan 770,500               797,996               
Nonaccrual interest 456,513               431,634               
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities 74,381                 31,033                 
OREO write-downs 49,485                 -                           

Total deferred tax assets 2,623,086            2,664,748            

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (27,500)                -                           

Total deferred tax liabilities (27,500)                -                           

Net deferred tax assets 2,595,586$          2,664,748$           
 
No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was recorded at December 31, 2018 and 2017, as the Company believes 
it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets will be realized because they were supported by recoverable 
taxes paid in prior years. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the reduction in net deferred tax assets consists 
primarily of a $1.4 million non-cash charge due to the Company’s corporate rate being reduced from 35% to 21% 
under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.  Therefore, the deferred tax assets and liabilities were remeasured at the 
lower rate. 
 
A reconciliation of the significant differences between the federal statutory income tax rate and the Company’s 
effective income tax rate is as follows:  
 

2018 2017
Federal statutory rate 272,541$           1,302,495$        
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

State income tax, net of federal tax benefit 20,123               67,086               
Tax exempt interest income (18,493)              (33,312)              
Nondeductible expense 4,516                 7,870                 
Rate change for remeasured deferred tax assets -                         1,376,490          
Other items, net 12,906               (35,464)              

Income tax expense 291,593$           2,685,165$        
 

NOTE 9.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 
 
The Company provides retirement benefits to its employees through the Putnam County Bank 401(k) Plan, which is 
intended to be compliant with Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) Section 404(c). The Company’s 
total expense associated with the retirement benefit plan approximated $77,131 and $61,212 for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  
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NOTE 9.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 
 
The Company also maintains a defined benefit pension plan (“the Defined Benefit Plan”). The Defined Benefit Plan 
was frozen as of October 31, 2012. The Defined Benefit Plan maintains a December 31 year-end for purposes of 
computing its benefit obligations.  
 
The following table sets summarizes activity with the frozen Defined Benefit Plan in 2018 and 2017:  
 

2018 2017
Change in fair value of plan assets:

Fair value at beginning of measurement period 5,773,356$          5,383,586$          
Actual gain/(loss) on plan assets (275,141)              628,071               
Contributions 214,000               189,000               
Benefits paid (440,325)              (427,301)              

Fair value at end of measurement periods 5,271,890            5,773,356            

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of measurement period (9,076,315)           (8,513,018)           
Interest cost (318,884)              (340,316)              
Actuarial gain/(loss) 493,830               (650,282)              
Benefits paid 440,325               427,301               

Benefit obligation at end of measurement period (8,461,044)           (9,076,315)           

Funded status (3,189,154)$         (3,302,959)$         

Weighted-average assumptions for balance sheet liability at end of year:
Discount rate 4.20% 3.60%
Expected long-term rate of return 7.00% 7.00%

Weighted-average assumptions for benefit cost at beginning of year:
Discount rate 3.60% 4.10%
Expected long-term rate of return 7.00% 7.00%  

 
The unfunded status of the plan as of December 31, 2018 is included within Other Liabilities on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets.  At December 31, 2018, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income includes a balance of 
$2,657,337, net of tax, related to the underfunded pension liability.  
 
The following table presents the components of the net periodic pension cost of the Defined Benefit Plan: 
 

2018 2017
Components of net periodic benefit:

Interest cost 318,884$             340,316$             
Expected return on plan assets (401,772)              (394,104)              
Amortization of unrecognized (gain)/loss 398,680               332,240               

Net periodic pension cost 315,792$             278,452$             
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NOTE 9.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 
 
The Bank anticipates making contributions of $209,919 to the plan for the year ending December 31, 2019. The 
following table summarizes the expected benefits to be paid in each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the 
five years thereafter:  
 

Expected benefits 
Plan year ending December 31, to be paid

2019 452,091$             
2020 447,347               
2021 445,521               
2022 444,389               
2023 472,913               
2024 through 2028 2,386,987            
   Total 4,649,248$           

 
Asset allocation for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan as of the measurement date, by asset category, is as follows:  
 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Equities 50% 40-60% 45% 51%
Fixed income 50% 40-60% 54% 48%
Other 0-3% 1% 1%
    Totals 100% 100%

Percentage of plan assets at
Plan Assets

Target Allocation 
2018

Allowable allocation 
range

 
 
The primary long-term objective for the plan is to maintain assets at a level that will sufficiently cover future 
beneficiary obligations. The plan is overseen by Pentegra Retirement Services, who will invest the assets of the plan in 
a diversified combination of asset classes, investment strategies, and pooled vehicles. The asset allocation guidelines 
displayed in the table above reflect the Bank’s risk tolerance and long-term objectives and is reviewed periodically to 
meet the above target allocations. The expected long-term rate of return for the plan’s assets is based on the expected 
return of each of the above categories, weighted based on the median of the target allocation for each class. The major 
categories of assets in the Company’s Defined Benefit Plan as of year-end are presented in the following table. Assets 
are segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy established by ASC Topic 820 
utilized to measure fair value (see Note 14 for fair value hierarchy).  
 
The following tables present the balances of the plan assets, by fair value, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:  
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents 37,256$           -$                    -$                    37,256$           
Fixed income mutual funds 2,870,317        -                      -                      2,870,317        
Common/collective trusts -                      289,523           -                      289,523           
Equity mutual funds 2,074,794        -                      -                      2,074,794        

Totals 4,982,367$      289,523$         -$                5,271,890$      

Fair Value Measurement Using
December 31, 2018
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NOTE 9.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents 44,696$           -$                    -$                    44,696$           
Fixed income mutual funds 2,798,558        -                      -                      2,798,558        
Common/collective trusts -                      305,993           -                      305,993           
Equity mutual funds 2,624,109        -                      -                      2,624,109        

Totals 5,467,363$      305,993$         -$                5,773,356$      

Fair Value Measurement UsingDecember 31, 2017

 
 
NOTE 10.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
In the normal course of business, the Company and its subsidiary, Putnam County Bank, have loans, deposits and 
other transactions with its executive officers, directors and certain business organizations and individuals with which 
such persons are associated as discussed in Notes 4, 6 and 7. In the opinion of management, such transactions are 
consistent with prudent banking practices and are within applicable banking regulations. 
 
NOTE 11.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Bank is a party to certain financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to 
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, 
commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of 
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The contract or 
notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial 
instruments.  
 
A summary of the notional amounts of the financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December 31, 2018 and 
2017 is as follows:  
 

Contract Amount 2018 2017
Commitments to extend credit 17,209,328$        17,511,601$        
Commercial and standby letters of credit 120,750               415,750               
   Totals 17,330,078$        17,927,351$         

 
The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for 
commitments to extend credit and commercial and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of 
those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it 
does for on-balance sheet instruments.  
 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
require payment of a fee. Since commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do 
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-
by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary upon extension of credit, is based on 
management’s credit evaluation of the counterpart. Collateral requirements vary but may include accounts receivable, 
inventory, property, plant and equipment, or real estate.  
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NOTE 11.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 
 
Commercial and standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. These guarantees are primarily issued to support private borrowing 
arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending 
loans.  
 
Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as 
liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Based 
upon information currently available, management believes that such loss contingencies, in the aggregate, will not 
have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s business, financial position, or results of operations.  
 
NOTE 12.  CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 
 
The majority of the Bank's loans, commitments, and commercial and standby letters of credit have been granted to 
customers in the Bank's market area. Investments in state and municipal securities and loans to governmental entities 
are within the Bank's home state. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in Note 4. The distribution 
of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. Commercial and standby letters of 
credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers.  
 
NOTE 13.  REGULATORY MATTERS 
 
Putnam Bancshares, Inc.’s principal source of funds for future dividend payments to shareholders is from dividend 
payments received from its wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam County Bank. 
 
The Bank, as a state chartered member bank of the Federal Reserve System, is subject to the dividend restrictions set 
forth by the West Virginia Division of Financial Institutions as well as the Federal Reserve Board. Under such 
restrictions, the Bank may not, without the prior approval of the West Virginia Division of Financial Institutions and 
the Federal Reserve Board, declare dividends in excess of the sum of the current year’s net income, as defined, plus 
the retained net profits from the two preceding years. The Bank normally restricts dividends to a lesser amount. The 
dividends as of December 31, 2018, that the Bank could declare without the approval of the West Virginia Division of 
Financial Institutions and the Federal Reserve Board amounted to approximately $3,221,220.  
 
The Bank is also subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking 
agencies. Failure to meet the minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a material effect on the Bank and the consolidated financial statements. Capital adequacy 
guidelines require minimum ratios of 6% for Tier 1 capital, 8% for total risk-based capital, and 4% for Tier 1 leverage 
capital. To be well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective actions, the ratios must be at least 
8%, 10%, and 5%, respectively.  
 
Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-
weighting of assets and certain off-balance sheet items, and other factors.  
 
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank exceeded all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject and 
had regulatory capital ratios in excess of the levels established for well capitalized institutions. Management believes, 
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which 
they were subject. As of December 31, 2018, the most recent notification from the Bank’s primary regulatory agency 
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be 
categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier I 
leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management 
believes have changed the Bank’s category.  
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NOTE 13.  REGULATORY MATTERS (continued) 
 
The Bank’s actual ratios as well as a comparison of the period-end capital balances with the related amounts 
established by the regulatory agencies are as follows:  
 

Ratios Actual Minimum Well capitalized

Total risk-based capital
(to risk-weighted assets) 31.67% 93,734,000$      23,676,000$      29,595,000$      

Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets) 30.42% 90,016,000        17,757,000        23,676,000        

Tier 1 leverage capital
(to adjusted average assets) 15.15% 90,016,000        23,762,000        29,703,000        

Total risk-based capital
(to risk-weighted assets) 27.06% 94,579,000$      27,966,000$      34,958,000$      

Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets) 25.80% 90,192,000        20,975,000        27,966,000        

Tier 1 leverage capital
(to adjusted average assets) 13.90% 90,192,000        25,948,000        32,435,000        

December 31, 2018

Capital amounts

December 31, 2017

 
 
NOTE 14.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
including those financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured and reported at fair value on a recurring 
basis or nonrecurring basis. The following summarizes the methods and significant assumptions used by the Bank in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments:  
 

Cash and Due from Banks: The carrying values of cash and due from banks approximate their estimated fair 
value (Level 1).  
 
Federal Funds Sold: The carrying values of federal funds sold approximate their fair value (Level 1).  
 
Investment Securities: Estimated fair values of investment securities are based on quoted market prices, 
where available (Level 1). If quoted market prices are not available, estimated fair values are based on 
quoted market prices of comparable securities (Level 2).  
 
Loans: The estimated fair values for loans are computed based on scheduled future cash flows of principal 
and interest, discounted at interest rates currently offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar 
credit risks and terms (Level 2).  
 
Accrued Interest Receivable and Accrued Interest Payable: The carrying values of accrued interest 
receivable on the Bank’s investment securities and loans is assumed to approximate fair value. Likewise, the 
carrying value of accrued interest payable on the Bank’s interest-bearing deposits is assumed to approximate 
fair values (Level 1).  
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NOTE 14.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 
Deposits: The estimated fair values of demand deposits are equal to their carrying values. Fair values for 
time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation at rates currently offered for deposits 
with similar remaining maturities (Level 2).  

 
The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments at December 31, 2018 and 2017, are 
summarized as follows:  
 

Carrying Value
Estimated Fair 

Value Carrying Value
Estimated Fair 

Value
Financial assets:

Cash and due from banks 15,822,270$      15,822,270$      19,139,217$      19,139,217$      
Federal funds sold 56,318,480        56,318,480        47,600,000        47,600,000        
Securities available-for-sale 29,122,929        29,122,929        64,811,453        64,811,453        
Securities held-to-maturity 137,869,021      137,825,475      91,541,459        91,477,789        
Loans 342,748,864      342,748,864      390,402,763      390,402,763      
Accrued interest receivable 1,018,672          1,018,672          1,429,607          1,429,607          

Totals 582,900,236$    582,856,690$    614,924,499$    614,860,829$    

Financial liabilities:
Deposits 495,846,215$    495,846,215$    528,317,180$    528,317,180$    
Accrued interest payable 1,245,816          1,245,816          1,055,710          1,055,710          

Totals 497,092,031$    497,092,031$    529,372,890$    529,372,890$    

2018 2017

 
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures, defines fair value as the exchange price that would be 
received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 also 
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use 
of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to 
measure fair value.  
  

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting 
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.  
 
Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data.  
 
Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company’s own assumptions about the assumptions 
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.  

 
Accordingly, securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time to time, 
the Bank may be required to record other assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These nonrecurring fair value 
adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or market accounting or write-downs of individual assets.  
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NOTE 14.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 
A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value follows, as well as the 
classification of such instruments within the valuation hierarchy:  
 

Securities Available for Sale: Securities are classified within Level 1 where quoted market prices are 
available in an active market. Inputs include securities that have quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets. If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is estimated using quoted prices of securities with 
similar characteristics, at which point the securities would be classified with Level 2 of the hierarchy. Level 
2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities and municipal 
bonds.  
  
Impaired Loans: Loans are measured for impairment using the methods permitted by ASC Topic 310, 
Receivables. Fair value of impaired loans is measured by either the loans obtainable market price, if 
available (Level 1), the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent (Level 2), or the present 
value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate (Level 3). Fair value of 
the collateral is determined by appraisals or by independent valuation.  
 
Other Real Estate Owned (“OREO”): Properties are recorded at the balance of the loan or at estimated fair 
value less estimated selling costs, whichever is less, at the date acquired. Fair values of OREO at December 
31, 2018, are determined by sales agreements or appraisals, and costs to sell are based on estimation per the 
terms and conditions of the sales agreements or amounts commonly used in real estate transactions. Inputs 
include appraisal values on the properties or recent sales activity for similar assets in the property’s market, 
and thus OREO measured at fair value would be classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy.  

 
Assets at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Government treasuries -$                      4,985,940$       -$                      4,985,940$       
U.S. Government agencies -                        19,971,900       -                        19,971,900       
Municipal bonds -                        2,740,837         -                        2,740,837         
Mutual funds 1,424,252         -                        -                        1,424,252         

Totals 1,424,252$       27,698,677$     -$                      29,122,929$     

Fair Value Measurement Using
December 31, 2018

 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Government treasuries -$                      10,040,820$     -$                      10,040,820$     
U.S. Government agencies -                        50,439,591       -                        50,439,591       
Municipal bonds -                        2,875,018         -                        2,875,018         
Mutual funds 1,456,024         -                        -                        1,456,024         

Totals 1,456,024$       63,355,429$     -$                      64,811,453$     

Fair Value Measurement Using
December 31, 2017
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NOTE 14.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 
Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 
 
The Bank may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These include assets that are measured at the lower of 
cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the end of the period. The following table measures 
financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:  
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Impaired loans -$                      22,628,941$     -$                      22,628,941$     

OREO -$                      1,009,663$       -$                      1,009,663$       

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Impaired loans -$                      47,573,512$     -$                      47,573,512$     

OREO -$                      1,738,269$       -$                      1,738,269$       

Fair Value Measurement Using
December 31, 2017

Fair Value Measurement Using
December 31, 2018

 
 
ASC Topic 825 provides the Company with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The 
fair value option established by this statement permits the Company to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at 
specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in 
earnings at each reporting date subsequent to implementation.  
 
The Company has chosen not to elect the fair value option for any items that are not already required to be measured at 
fair value in accordance with U.S. GAAP and, as such, has not included any gains or losses in earnings for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. 
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NOTE 15.  PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Condensed financial information of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. (Parent Company) is presented below. 
 
BALANCE SHEETS

2018 2017
ASSETS
Cash 161,758$             170,515$             
Investment in Putnam County Bank 87,176,181          87,863,408          
Investment in Putnam County Title Insurance Agency (7,746)                  8,853                   

TOTAL ASSETS 87,330,193$        88,042,776$        

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Accounts payable -$                         -$                         
Income taxes payable (5,663)                  574                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES (5,663)                  574                      

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 87,335,856          88,042,202          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
   STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 87,330,193$        88,042,776$        

December 31,

 
 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

2018 2017

INCOME 1,740,000$          1,750,200$          

EXPENSES:
Operating expenses 8,183                   8,329                   

Income before income tax benefit and equity in 
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1,731,817            1,741,871            

Applicable income taxes (5,663)                  574                      

Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1,737,480            1,741,297            
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (731,259)              (595,595)              

 Net income 1,006,221$          1,145,702$          

Years Ended
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NOTE 15.  PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net income 1,006,221$          1,145,702$          

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
  provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 731,259               595,595               
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable -                           -                           
Increase/(decrease) in income taxes payable (6,237)                  574                      

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,731,243            1,741,871            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (1,740,000)           (1,740,000)           

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,740,000)           (1,740,000)           

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (8,757)                  1,871                   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 170,515               168,644               

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 161,758$             170,515$             

Years Ended
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W
e are proud to present the financial results of Putnam

 Bancshares, Inc. 
and its w

holly-ow
ned subsidiary, Putnam

 County Bank, for 2014.

The Bank’s earnings show
ed significant im

provem
ent in 2014 w

ith 
net earnings of $6.3 m

illion com
pared w

ith $5 m
illion in 2013.  Loan 

grow
th during the year w

as significant in supporting the increase of 
earnings.  In addition, a low

er cost of funds com
bined w

ith the contin-
ued trend of im

proved credit quality resulting in low
er net loan losses 

and close control of expenses also helped earnings.

N
et loans increased $60 m

illion or 17%
 in 2014, in contrast to an in-

crease of $25 m
illion or 8%

 in 2013.  The increase m
arks an im

proving 
local econom

y effort to increase lending in our m
arket w

hile   
recognizing that credit quality is essential. W

e take pride in providing 
local decisions for our custom

er base and effi
cient turnaround.  

The Bank’s capital base grew
 to $80 m

illion in 2014.  O
ur capital base 

continues to show
 considerable strength.

M
anagem

ent w
ill continue to focus on net interest m

argin closely in 
the future and grow

 lending in a safe and profitable m
anner.  The Bank 

w
ill continue to dem

onstrate responsible care in its operating expenses 
w

hile serving its com
m

unity.

D
uring 2014, the econom

y has illustrated som
e strength in recovering 

from
 the effects of high unem

ploym
ent, low

 consum
er and business 

spending, and declines in real estate values.  W
hile signs of recovery are 

evident, a consistent path is elusive.  The banking industry has show
n 

significant im
provem

ent.  The bank failure rate in 2011 w
as 92; 51 in 

2012 and 24 in 2013.  In 2014, 18 banks failed.  The FD
IC’s problem

 bank 
list dropped from

 a peak of 884 in the first quarter of 2011 to 291 at the 
fourth quarter of 2014. 
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	 Kera D. Taylor	 Audit Clerk		
	
	 Cheryl L. Halstead	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Bryan J. McCallister	 Research and Records		
	
	 Retha A. Lemon	 Paying & Receiving 		
	
	 Cathy M. Lippert	 Loan Operations		
	
Amanda A. McCallister	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Darlena F. Meadows	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Jill R. Rice 	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Ashley M. Johnson	 Electronic Banking		
	
	Jonathan S. Fisher, II	 Credit Analyst		
	
	 Kelley A. Lanning	 Loan Operations		
	
	 James S. Coniff	 Evaluations/Appraisal Review		
	
	 Janet F. Benjamin	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Mary B. Jordan	 Bookkeeping Manager		
	
	Elizabeth H. Handley	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Tamara L. Epperly	 Bookkeeping		
	
	 Bruce A. Scarberry	 Building Maintenance 		
	
	Patricia J. Thomasson	 Accounting Clerk		

	 Devyn L. Smith	 Loan Operations		
	
	 Ashley R. Fain	 Paying & Receiving		
	
	 Jarrett T. Hylton	 Proof Operations		
	
	 Michelle R. Jividen	 Bookkeeping		
	
	 Shanna N. McClure	 Loan Operations		
	
	 Ryan W. Ramey	 Senior Credit Analyst

	 Cory B. Kidder	 Portfolio Manager

	 Clayton E. Willis	 Construction Loan Manager		
	
	 Joshua L. O'Dell	 Credit Analyst		
	
	 D. Eric Hayslett	 Collections Manager

	 Robert A. Hunt	 Special Assets Manager

	 Charles H. Peak III	 Credit Administrator		
	
	Amanda G. Henderson 	 Bookkeeping

	 Dawn R. Morgan	 Paying & Receiving

	Anndrea D. Spangler	 Paying & Receiving
	
	 J. Brett Adkins	 Bookkeeping

	 Ryan L. Eary	 Paying & Receiving		
	




